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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 

by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney   ) 

General of the State of Illinois,   ) 

       ) 

   Complainant,   ) 

       ) 

  v.     ) PCB No. _____________   

       ) (Enforcement – Water) 

       ) 

VILLAGE OF ROBBINS, a municipal  ) 

corporation,      ) 

       ) 

   Respondent.   ) 
 

 

NOTICE OF FILING OF THE COMPLAINT, STIPULATION AND PROPOSAL FOR 

SETTLEMENT, AND MOTION TO REQUEST RELIEF FROM HEARING 

REQUIREMENT INVOLVING NPDES PERMIT MATTER 

 

 

TO: All Individuals Named on the Certificate of Service (VIA ELECTRONIC FILING) 

 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 12th day of January 2021, I caused to be filed with the 

Office of the Clerk of the Illinois Pollution Control Board (Board) by electronic filing the (1) 

Complaint, (2) Stipulation and Proposal for Settlement and (3) Motion for Relief from Hearing 

Requirement with Notice of Electronic Service, a copy of each is attached hereto and hereby 

served upon you.  

 

 

NOTIFICATION - YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that financing may be available through 

the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/1, et seq.] to correct the 

alleged violations.  

 

 

NOTIFICATION – Pursuant to Section 103.300(b) of the Board Procedural Rules, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 103.300(b), where a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit is 

involved in the settlement, any person may file with the Clerk a written comment or demand for 
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hearing within 30 days after publication by the Board.  The written demand for hearing must 

state that a public hearing is requested and must indicate the assigned Board Docket number and 

respondent’s name in the matter.  This settlement involves an NPDES permit.   

 

 

 

                 PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

                                   KWAME RAOUL 

                                                                    Attorney General of the State of Illinois 

 

             By: /s/ Karen W. Howard 

                        KAREN W. HOWARD 

               Assistant Attorney General  

                  Environmental Bureau North 

          69 W. Washington Street, Suite 1800 

            Chicago, IL 60602 

       (312) 814-5361 

              Primary: khoward@atg.state.il.us 

              Secondary: mcacaccio@atg.state.il.us  
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE  

 

 I, KAREN W. HOWARD, an Assistant Attorney General, do certify that on January 12, 

2021, I caused to be served by electronic mail with receipt notification requested to each of the 

individuals listed below on this certificate of service, the Notice of Filing, Complaint, Motion for 

Request Relief from Hearing, and Stipulation and Proposal for Settlement.  

 

 

 

  /s/ Karen W. Howard   

              KAREN W. HOWARD 

                   

 

SERVICE LIST 

 

Felicia Frazier 

ODELSON, STERK, MURPHEY, FRAZIER & McGRATH, LTD. 

3318 West 95th Street 

Evergreen Park, Illinois 60805 

ffrazier@osmfm.com 
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 

by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney   ) 

General of the State of Illinois,   ) 

       ) 

   Complainant,   ) 

       ) 

  v.     ) PCB No. _____________   

       ) (Enforcement – Water) 

       ) 

VILLAGE OF ROBBINS, a municipal  ) 

corporation,      ) 

       ) 

   Respondent.   ) 

      

COMPLAINT 
 

 Complainant, the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by KWAME RAOUL, 

Attorney General of the State of Illinois, on his own motion and at the request of the Illinois 

Environmental Protection Agency, complains of the Respondent, the VILLAGE OF ROBBINS, a 

municipal corporation, as follows: 

DISCHARGING WITHOUT A NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE 

ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMIT  

 

1. This Complaint is brought on behalf of the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF 

ILLINOIS, by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, on his own motion 

and at the request of the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“Illinois EPA”), against the 

VILLAGE OF ROBBINS, a municipal corporation, pursuant to the terms and provisions of 

Section 31 of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act (“Act”), 415 ILCS 5/31 (2018). 

2. The Illinois EPA is an administrative agency of the State of Illinois created pursuant 

to Section 4 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2018), and charged with, inter alia, the duty of enforcing the 

Act. The Illinois EPA is further charged with the duty to abate violations of the National Pollutant 
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 2 

Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) permit program under the Federal Clean Water Act 

(“CWA”), 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b)(7). 

3. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent, the VILLAGE OF ROBBINS 

(“ROBBINS”), is and has been a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws 

of the State of Illinois.   

4. ROBBINS has a population of approximately 5,300 citizens and is located in the 

Southwestern suburbs of Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.  

5. ROBBINS is the owner and operator of a small municipal separate storm sewer 

system (“MS4”).   

6. Approximately 1.5 square miles of land drains into ROBBINS’ MS4.   

7. The receiving waters for ROBBINS’ MS4 include the Calumet-Saganashkee (“Cal-

Sag”) Channel and Midlothian Creek.    

8. On March 10, 2003, the Illinois EPA received ROBBINS’ Notice of Intent to obtain 

coverage under the General NPDES MS4 permit.   

9. The Illinois EPA issued ROBBINS NPDES Permit No. ILR400239 (“NPDES MS4 

Permit”), providing coverage for ROBBINS’ storm water discharges under the General NPDES 

MS4 permit.   

10. On February 29, 2008, ROBBINS’ NPDES MS4 Permit expired.  

11. On or about January 16, 2015, the Illinois EPA conducted a Compliance Evaluation 

Inspection of the ROBBINS MS4 program at the ROBBINS Public Works garage, including 

evaluation of ROBBINS’ permit, records, reports and facility. During the inspection, it was noted 

that ROBBINS had failed to renew its NPDES MS4 Permit, did not have a storm water 
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management program, and lacked best management practices to control the contamination of storm 

water discharges, as required by the NPDES MS4 program.     

12. On October 1, 2015, an Illinois EPA follow-up inspection took place of the 

ROBBINS Public Works garage.  None of the previously identified NPDES MS4 Permit issues 

had been resolved by ROBBINS. 

13. On August 3, 2020, ROBBINS submitted to the Illinois EPA a renewal application 

for its NPDES MS4 Permit.  And on August 5, 2020, the Illinois EPA issued to ROBBINS the 

Notice of Coverage under General Permit No. ILR400239. 

14. The United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) administers the 

NPDES program in each State unless the USEPA has delegated authority to do so to that State.  

The USEPA has authorized the State of Illinois to issue NPDES permits through the Illinois EPA 

in compliance with federal regulations, including storm water discharges regulated by 40 C.F.R. 

122.26 and 40 C.F.R. 122.32, which require small MS4 operators to obtain an NPDES permit to 

lawfully discharge storm water.   

15. The CWA regulates storm water discharges from sewer systems and prohibits such 

storm water discharges without an NPDES permit. 

16. ROBBINS’ operation of its MS4 is subject to the Act and the rules and regulations 

promulgated by the Illinois Pollution Control Board (“Board”).  The Board’s regulations for water 

pollution are found in Title 35, Subtitle C, Chapter I of the Illinois Administrative Code (“Board 

Water Pollution Regulations”). 
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17. Sections 12(a) and (f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) and (f) (2018), provide as 

follows: 

 No person shall: 

(a) Cause or threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminants into the      

environment in any State so as to cause or tend to cause water pollution in 

Illinois, either alone or in combination with matter from other sources, or 

so as to violate regulations or standards adopted by the Pollution Control 

Board under this Act. 

*     *     * 

(f) Cause, threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminant into the waters 

of the State, as defined herein, including but not limited to, waters to any 

sewage works, or into any well or from any point source within the State, 

without an NPDES permit for point source discharges issued by the Agency 

under Section 39(b) of this Act, or in violation of any term or condition 

imposed by such permit, or in violation of any NPDES permit filing 

requirement established under Section 39(b), or in violation of any 

regulations adopted by the Board or of any order adopted by the Board with 

respect to the NPDES program. 

 

 18. Section 3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2018), provides the following 

definition: 

“Person” is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, limited 

liability company, corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate, 

political subdivision, state agency, or any other legal entity, or their legal 

representative, agent or assigns. 

 

19. ROBBINS, a municipal corporation, is a “person” as that term is defined in Section 

3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2018). 

20. Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2018), provides the following 

definition: 

“Contaminant” is any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any form of 

energy, from whatever source. 
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21. Storm water is a “contaminant” as that term is defined in Section 3.165 of the Act, 

415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2018). 

22. Section 3.550 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.550 (2018), provides the following 

definition: 

“Waters” means all accumulations of water, surface and underground, natural, and 

artificial, public and private, or parts thereof, which are wholly or partially within, 

flow through, or border upon this State. 

 

23. The waters within ROBBINS’ MS4, the Cal-Sag Channel, and the Midlothian 

Creek constitute “waters” of the State of Illinois as that term is defined in Section 3.550 of the Act, 

415 ILCS 5/3.550 (2018). 

24. Section 3.545 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.545 (2018), provides as follows: 

“Water pollution” is such alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical, biological 

or radioactive properties of any waters of the State, or such discharge of any 

contaminant into any waters of the State, as will or is likely to create a nuisance or 

render such waters harmful or detrimental or injurious to public health, safety or 

welfare, or to domestic, commercial, industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other 

legitimate uses, or to livestock, wild animals, birds, fish, or other aquatic life. 

 

25. The discharge of storm water within its MS4 coverage area without a permit will 

or is likely to create a nuisance or render such waters harmful or detrimental or injurious to public 

health, safety or welfare, or to domestic, commercial, industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other 

legitimate uses, or to livestock, wild animals, birds, fish, or other aquatic life, and therefore 

constitutes “water pollution,” as that term is defined by Section 3.545 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.545 

(2018). 
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26. Section 309.102(a) of the Board Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

309.102(a), provides as follows: 

 NPDES Permit Required 

 a)         Except as in compliance with the provisions of the Act, Board regulations, 

  and the CWA, and the provisions and conditions of the NPDES permit  

  issued to the discharger, the discharge of any contaminant or pollutant by  

  any person into the waters of the State from a point source or into a well  

  shall be unlawful.  

 

27. Section 1362(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.A. § 1362(14) (2018), provides, in 

pertinent part, the following definition: 

(14) The term “point source” means any discernible, confined, and discrete 

conveyance, . . . 

 

28. The ROBBINS’ MS4 storm water system and the inlets leading into the Cal-Sag 

Channel and the Midlothian Creek are each a discernible, confined and discrete conveyance, and 

therefore each constitutes a “point source,” as that term is defined in Section 1362(14) of the 

CWA, 33 U.S.C.A. Sec. 1362(14).   

29. From at least March 1, 2008 through August 4, 2020, ROBBINS discharged storm 

water, a contaminant, from its MS4, a “point source,” into waters of the State. 

30. From at least March 1, 2008 through August 4, 2020, ROBBINS unlawfully 

discharged storm water, a contaminant, into the waters of the State from ROBBINS’ MS4 after 

the expiration of ROBBINS’ NPDES MS4 Permit. 

31. By failing to timely renew its NPDES MS4 Permit and continuing to discharge 

storm water into its MS4 without a permit, ROBBINS violated Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/12(f) (2018), and Section 309.102(a) of the Board Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 309.102(a). 
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32. By violating Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (2018), and Section 

309.102(a) of the Board Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102(a), with its 

discharge of storm water from its MS4 coverage area into waters of the State without a valid permit 

authorizing such discharge, ROBBINS also caused or tended to cause water pollution in Illinois in 

violation of Section 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (2018). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter an Order against Respondent, VILLAGE OF ROBBINS, as follows: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time Respondent will be required to 

answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that Respondent violated Sections 12(a) and 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/12(a) and (f) (2018), and Section 309.102(a) of the Board Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 309.102(a); 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any future violations of Sections 

12(a) and 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) and (f) (2018), and Section 309.102(a) of the Board 

Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102(a); 

4. Assessing, pursuant to Section 42(b)(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(b)(1) (2018), 

against the Respondent a civil penalty of (a) Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each 

violation of Section 12(a) of the Act and an additional penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) for each day of such violation; and (b) Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) per day 

for each day of violation of Section 12(f) of the Act and any regulation relating to NPDES permit 

program;  
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5. Ordering Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/42(f) (2018), including any attorney, expert witness, and consultant fees expended by the 

State in its pursuit of this action;  

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

      PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 

      by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney 

      General of the State of Illinois, 

 

      MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief  

      Environmental Enforcement/Asbestos 

      Litigation Division 

 

 

 

          By:  _______________________________ 

      STEPHEN J. SYLVESTER, Chief     

             Assistant Attorney General              

             Environmental Bureau 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OF COUNSEL: 

KAREN W. HOWARD 

KATHRYN A. PAMENTER 

Assistant Attorney General 

Environmental Bureau 

Illinois Attorney General’s Office 

69 W. Washington Street, Suite 1800 

Chicago, Illinois  60602 

(312) 814-5361 

Primary:  khoward@atg.state.il.us 

Secondary:  Mcacaccio@atg.state.il.us 
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 

by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney   ) 

General of the State of Illinois,   ) 

       ) 

   Complainant,   ) 

       ) 

  v.     ) PCB No. _____________   

       ) (Enforcement – Water) 

       ) 

VILLAGE OF ROBBINS, a municipal  ) 

corporation,      ) 

       ) 

   Respondent.   )    

 

 

 

MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM HEARING REQUIREMENT  

AND NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE 

 

NOW COMES Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by KWAME 

RAOUL, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, and pursuant to Section 31(c)(2) of the Illinois 

Environmental Protection Act (“Act”), 415 ILCS 5/31(c)(2) (2018), moves that the Illinois 

Pollution Control Board (“Board”) grant the parties in the above-captioned matter relief from the 

hearing requirement imposed by Section 31(c)(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(c)(1) (2018).  In 

support of this Motion, Complainant states as follows: 

1. The Complaint in this matter alleges violations of Sections 12(a) and 12(f) of the 

Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) and (f) (2018), and Section 309.102(a) of the Board Water Pollution 

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102(a), for operating without a NPDES MS4 Permit.  

2. Complainant is filing the Complaint with the Board simultaneously with this 

Motion and a Stipulation and Proposal for Settlement. 

3. The Respondent has agreed to accept service of the Complaint via electronic mail.   

4. The parties have reached agreement on all outstanding issues in this matter. 
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5. This agreement is presented to the Board in a Stipulation and Proposal for 

Settlement filed this same date. 

6. Complainant asserts that a hearing on the Stipulation and Proposal for Settlement 

is not necessary, and respectfully requests relief from such a hearing as allowed by Section 

31(c)(2) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(c)(2) (2018).  The Respondent has no objection to this 

motion. 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, hereby requests 

that the Board grant this motion for relief from the hearing requirement set forth in Section 

31(c)(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(c)(1) (2018). 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

       

KWAME RAOUL 

Attorney General 

State of Illinois 

 

BY: _/s/ Karen W. Howard________ 

 Karen W. Howard 

Assistant Attorney General 

Environmental Bureau 

Illinois Attorney General’s Office 

69 W. Washington Street, Suite 1800 

Chicago, Illinois  60602 

(312) 814-5361 

khoward@atg.state.il.us 

Secondary e-mail address:  mcacaccio@atg.state.il.us 

 

 

DATE:  January 12, 2021 
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